EMERGENCY ORDER

(Regarding Implementation of Cloud-Based Records Management
Software for Laurel Police Department)

WHEREAS, the Administration was notified via email, see Exhibit &, that due
to a hardware failure at the Laurel Police Department, the Records Management
Software is currently down and causing disruption of record keeping operatlons in
the police department; and

WHEREAS, §31-7-13(k) of the Mississippi Code of 1972 Annotated gives
authority to the Mayor, acting as an agent of the City, to order the immediate
remediation of circumstances which threaten the safety and welfare of the citizens of
the city with ratification of said actions to be granted by the council at the next
regularly scheduled meeting

NOW THEREFORE, I, Jchnny Magee, Mayor of the City of Laurel, acting
under the authority granted by §31-7-13(k) of the Mississippi Code of 1972
Annotated, do hereby authorize the emergency approval of a contractwith Tyler
Technologies, attached hereto as Exhibit B, for the migration of record keeping
software to a cloud-based model.

SO ORDERED on this the 28% _dayof_ JANUARY ,A.D.2026.
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Rachel Jones
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From: Jeffrey Williams

Sent: Tuesday, January 27, 2026 9:19 AM

To: Rachel Jones; Mayor Johnny Magee

Cc: , Earl Reed; Shane Valentine

Subject: Fw: [Laurel PD, MS] / Tyler Technologies: Fiip to SaaS Contract

Attachments: City of Laurel, MS Migration SaaS Agreement 012326.docx; City of Laurel, MS Migration

SaaS Agreement 012326.pdf

Due to the server hardware failure at the Police Dept, the Records Management Software is currently
down. We have two courses of action to proceed. One would be to purchase a new hardware server at
an approximate cost of $25,000 or move the software to a cloud-based model at an approximate cost of
$25,000. | recommend that the software be moved to the cloud-based model for the following reasons:

1. Accessibility - cloud-based will atlow the software to be accessed easier by the various
departments within the PD.

2. Security - Cloud-based will be better protected than on-premise software from various threats
like ransomware, viruses, and other online threats.

3. Annual maintenance will be higher but the cost will be offset by eliminating the future hardware
costs and neads.

Please file an emergency order for the approval of the contract to expedite the process of
Implementation of the cloud-based service to restore Records Management Software at the Police Dept.

| have attached the contract for the implementation of the cloud-based service provided by Tyler
Technologies, Inc.

Thank you,

leff Williams

CITY op_ Jefrey Williams | 7S Administrator
E‘ i Phone: 6014286421 Cell: 601-319-2470
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— City of Laurel, Mississippi
401 M 5th Ave
Laurel, M5 29440
wnalaurelms.com

From: Crespo, Brandy <Brandy.Crespo@tylertech.com>

Sent: Friday, lanuary 23, 2026 4:18 PM

To: leffrey Williams <jwilliams@laurelms.com>

Subject: [Laurel PD, MS] / Tyler Technologies: Flip to SaaS Contract

Hey leff,




| have attached 2files for you.

The Word Document is for redlines. If the city wishes to make any revisions, please redline the Word Document for
our tegal team 1o review.

If NO changes are needed and all is well. Please sign, scan, and return the PDF version at your earliest
convenience.

Thank you foryour excellent team work and help with this today!

Cheers,

Brandy Crespo

Account Executive - Public Safety Pro
Tyler Technologies, Inc.

P: 947.941.2912

www.tylertech.com
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Rachel Jones

il o L]
From: Jeffrey Williams
Sent: Tuesday, January 27, 2026 4:35 PM
To: Rachel Jones _
Subject: Fw: [Laurel PD, MS] / Tyler Technologies: Flip to AWS GovCloud:

From: Crespo, Brandy <Brandy.Crespo@tylertech.com>

Sent: Friday, January 23, 2026 2:43 PM

To: Jefirey Williams <jwilliams@IJaurelms.com>

Subject: Re: [Laurel PD, MS] / Tyler Technologies: Flip to AWS GovCloud:

You got it! | will share information below that may be helpful for a rough estimate!

Invoice # 130-159792 was paid for Nov 01 2025 - Oct 31 2026 in the amount of $35.940.88

The new SaaS price is $43,837. (and an additional one time $7,500 for services pertaining to the flip)

If we pro-rate from what was paid on invoice 130-159792, 3 months of maintenance already used up (Nov 25-Jan

26) 9 months left of that payment (Feb 1-Oct 31), that leaves $26,955.66 to be eredited towards the SaaS price of
$43,837.

$43,837 - $26,955.66 = $16,881.34 is roughly the difference that will be invoiced. An invoice for 1time services
($7,500) will also be sent.

| hope that this information helps.
Brandy Crespo
Account Executive - Public Safety Pro

Tyler Technologies, Inc.
P:947.541.2912

www.tyleriech.com

comimunity
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From: Jeffrey Williams <jwilliams@laurelms.com>
Sent: Friday, January 23, 2026 3:12 PM



To: Crespo, Brandy <Brandy.Crespo@tylertech.com>
Subject: Re: [Laurel PD, MS] / Tyler Technologies: Flip to AWS GovCloud:

Brandy,

We can do an emergency order to get the contract signed but I will need a rough estimate of the credit of
our remaining time. Iwill need to put the total cost and then deduct the estimated amount of credit from
that for the order. Once that is done, the mayor can sign the contract immediately.

Thanks '

Jeff

From: Crespo, Brandy <Brandy.Crespo@tylertech.com>

Sent: Friday, January 23, 2026 1:10 PM

To: Jeffrey Williams <jwilliams@Ilaurelms.com>

Subject: [Laurel PD, MS] / Tyler Technologies: Flip to AWS GovCloud:

Hey Jeff,

As we discussed, | have revised the quote previously shared last year with added jail module and users at no
additional cost.

I am attaching the Saa$S quote for your review. We also discussed maintenance since the invoices were paidin
November—once the contract is executed, you would get credit for the next 9 months {or so, depending on
payment history) toward the new Saa$ annual fee, owing only the difference of your current maintenance and new
SaaS annual fes.

For next steps-—I| went ahead an put in an expedited request for a new contract to be drafted in anticipation of the
city's approval of the flip as to not delay the "paperwork” process on Tyler Tech's side.

My team is dedicated to ensuring the police department is brought back up and functioning properly very quickly.
Our Technical Services team is ready to build the new AWS server as soon as we get the proper executed contract.
I witl send the contract draft as soon as | get it for review and signatures. Talkto you soon!

Cheers,

Brandy Crespo

Account Executive - Public Safety Pro
Tyter Technologies, Inc.
P:947.941.2912

www.tylertech.com
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SOFTWARE AS A SERVICE AGREEMENT

This Software as a Service Agreement is made between Tyler Technologies, Inc. and Client.

WHEREAS, Client and Tyler are parties to a License Agreement dated June 6, 2007 (the “Original
Agreement”);

WHEREAS, Client and Tyler now desire to migrate the software products purchased under the Original
Agreement and set forth in the Investment Summary from an on-premise installation to a Saa$
installation, and to replace the Original Agreement with updated terms to reflect the ongoing nature of
their relationship, under the terms of this Agreement;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual covenants and promises set forth
in this Agreement, Tyler and Client agree as follows:

SECTION A - DEFINITIONS

» “Affiliated Organization” means a government entity separate from you, but which will have
access to the Tyler Software detailed in Exhibit A under this Agreement. Permissible Affiliated
Organizations, if any, are listed in Exhibit A.

* “Agreement” means this Software as a Service Agreement.

° “Business Travel Policy” means our business travel policy. Our current Business Travel Policy is
available here: https://www.tylertech.com/ portals/0/terms/Tyler-Business-Travel-Policy.pdf.

¢ “Client” means the party indicated on the signature block or, in the absence of a signature
block, the Investment Summary.

e “Data” means your data necessary to use the Tyler Software.

* “Data Storage Capacity” means the contracted amount of storage capacity for your Data, if any,
identified in the Investment Summary.

*  “Defect” means a failure of the Tyler Software to substantially conform to the functional
descriptions set forth in our written proposal to you (or the Documentation in the absence of a
written proposal), or their functional equivalent. Future functionality may be updated,
modified, or otherwise enhanced through our maintenance and support services, and the
governing functional descriptions for such future functionality will be set forth in our then-
current Documentation.

* “Defined Users” means the number of users, if any, that are identified in the Investment
Summary.

©  “Developer” means a third party who owns the intellectual property rights to a Third-Party
Product.

* “Documentation” means any online or written documentation related to the use or
functionality of the Tyler Software that we provide or otherwise make available to you, including
instructions, user guides, manuals and other training or seif-help documentation.

» “Effective Date” means the date by which both your and our authorized representatives have
signed the Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if these terms are linked from an Order
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Form, the Effective Date is the date your authorized representative signed the Order Form.

* “Force Majeure” means an event beyond the reasonable control of you or us, including, without
limitation, governmental action, war, riot or civil commotion, fire, natural disaster, or any other
cause that could not with reasonable diligence be foreseen or prevented by you or us.

* “Investment Summary” means the agreed upon cost proposal for the products and services
attached as Exhibit A,

¢ “Order Form” means an ordering document that includes a quote or investment summary and
specifies the items to be provided by Tyler to Client, includ ing any addenda and supplements
thereto, ‘

¢ “Professional Services” means those services provided by Tyler or a third party related to the
scope of this Agreement and identified in the Investment Summary.

“Saa$ Fees” means the fees for the SaaS Services identified in the Investment Sy mmary.

“Saas Services” means software as a service cansisting of system administration, system
management, and system monitoring activities that Tyler performs for the Tyler Software and
includes the right to access and use the Tyler Software, receive maintenance and support on the
Tyler Software, including Downtime resolution under the terms of the SLA, and Data storage and
archiving. Saa$ Services do not include support of an operating system or hardware, support
outside of our normal business hours, or training, consulting, or other professional services.

* “SLA” means the service level agreement. A copy of our current SLA is attached hereto as
Exhibit C.

e “Support Call Process” means the support call process applicable to all our customers who have
a right to use the Tyler Software. Our current Support Call Process is available here:
hitps://www.tyleriech.com/porials/0/terms/Tyier-Support-Call-Process. pdf.

¢  “Third-Party Hardware” means the third-party hardware, if any, identified in the Investment
Summary.

“Third-Party Products” means the Third-Party Software and Third-Pa rty Hardware.
“Third-Party Saa$ Services” means software as a service provided by a third party, if any,
identified in the Investment Summary.

e  “Third-Party Services” means the third-party services, if any, identified in the Investment
Summary.

®  “Third-Party Software” means the third-party software, if any, identified in the Investment
Summary or included with the Tyler Software.

¢  “Third-Party Terms” means the end user license agreement(s) or other terms, if any, for the
Third-Party Products or other parties’ products or services, as applicable, and attached or
indicated at Exhibit D.

e “Tyler” means Tyler Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation.

e “Tyler Software” means our proprietary software, including any integrations, custom
modifications, and/or other related interfaces identified in the Investment Summary and
licensed by us to you through this Agreement.

“we,” “us,” “our” and similar terms mean Tyler.

e ‘“we,” “us,
“you” and similar terms mean Client.

SECTION B— SAAS SERVICES

1. Termination of Original Agreement. When Tyler makes the Tyler Software set forth in the
Investment Summary and licensed pursuant to this Agreement available to the Client for use in live
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production, the Original Agreement will terminate by mutual agreement of the parties, as will
Tyler's maintenance, support, and/or update obligations for the software included therein.

Rights Granted. We grant to you the non-exclusive, non-assignable limited right to use the SaaS
Services solely for your governmental purposes, subject to any limits for Defined Users or Data
Storage Capacity. You may add additional users or additional data storage capacity on the terms set
forth in this Agreement. In the event you regularly and/or meaningfully exceed the Defined Users or
Data Storage Capacity, we reserve the right to charge you additional fees commensurate with the
overage(s). You acknowledge that we have no obligation to ship copies of the Tyler Software as
part of the Saa$ Services. Your right to use the Saa$ Services applies to releases provided as part of
our Maintenance and Support Services as further detailed in this Agreement.

Ownership.
3.1. We retain all ownership and intellectual property rights to the SaaS Services, the Tyler Software,

and anything developed by us under this Agreement. You do not acquire under this Agreement
any license to use the Tyler Software in excess of the scope and/or duration of the 5aa$ Services.

3.2. The Documentation is licensed to you and may be used and copied by your employees for
internal, non-commercial reference purposes only,

Data.

4.1. You retain all ownership and intellectual property rights to the Data. You expressly recognize
that except to the extent necessary to fulfill our obligations contained in this Agreement, we do
not create or endorse any Data used in connection with the Saa$ Services.

4.2. You expressly grant to us a limited, non-exclusive license to access, copy, transmit, download,
display, and reproduce your Data to provide services pursuant to this Agreement. Additionaliy,
you agree that Tyler may use deidentified Data for Client or third-party demonstrative or
training purposes.

4.3. Our access to and use of your Data necessary to use the Tyler Software or SaaS Services will
comply with applicable provisions of our Privacy Statement {available at
https://www.tylertech.com/privacy) and applicabie law.

4.4. Data Breach Notification. Tyler will provide notice of a breach of Client Data in accordance with
applicable state and federal data breach notification laws.

Restrictigns.
5.1. You may not:
5.1.1. make the Tyler Software or Documentation resulting from the SaaS Services available in
any manner to any third party for use in the third party’s business operations;
5.1.2. modify, make derivative works of, disassemble, reverse compile, or reverse engineer
any part of the 5aa$ Services;
5.1.3. access or use the SaaS Services to build or support, and/or assist a third party in building
or supporting, products or services competitive to us; or
5.14. license, sell, rent, lease, transfer, assign, distribute, display, host, outsource, disclose,
permit timesharing or service bureau use, or otherwise commercially exploit or make
the SaaS Services, Tyler Software, or Documentation available to any third party other
than as expressly permitted by this Agreement.
5.1.5. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 4.1, you may disclose, with our
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written consent, not to be unreasonably withheld, the Tyler Software, Saa$ Services, or
Documentation to a third party you consult with regarding the implementation or use of
the Tyler Software and Saa$ Services. You must ensure that any such third-party’s use
is subject to the terms of this Agreement, and you acknowledge and agree that you are
liable for any breach of the terms of this Agreement by such third party.

6. Software Warranty. We warrant that the Tyler Software will perform without Defects during the

term of this Agreement. if the Tyler Software does not perform as warranted, we will use all
reasonable efforts, consistent with industry standards, to cure the Defect in accordance with our
then-current Support Call Process.

7. SaaS Services.

7.1,

7.2

7.3.

Audit & Compliance. Our Saa$ Services are audited at least yearly in accordance with the
AICPA’s Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements (“SSAE”) No. 21. We have
attained, and will maintain, SOC 1 and SOC 2 compliance, or their equivalent, for so long as you
are timely paying for Saa$ Services. The foregoing notwithstanding, you acknowledge that the
scope of audit coverage varies depending on the specific Tyler Software solution. We will
provide you with a summary of our current compliance report(s} or its equivalent, upon your
request. For the avoidance of doubt, if our SaaS Services are provided using a third-party data
center, the compliance report may be for that third-party provider and be subject to
confidential treatment in accordance with applicable law. If you want us to provide our
compliance reports to a third-party auditor or similar entity, we reserve the right to require
execution of an NDA by that third party.

Service Levels. The Tyler Software will be made available to you according to the terms of the
SLA. Tyler Saa$ Services will be provided via a third-party data center. Your Data will be
inaccessible to our other customers.

Business Continuity. Data centers used to deliver Saa$ Services for this Agreement have
redundant telecommunications access, electrical power, and the required hardware to provide
access to the SaaS Services in the event of a disaster or component failure. We test our disaster
recovery plan on an annual basis. The plan is not client specific and is detailed in Tyler’s System
& Organization Control reports or their equivalent. In the event of a data center failure, we
reserve the right to employ our disaster recovery plan for resumption of the Saa$ Services. In
that event, we commit to a Recovery Point Objective (“RPO”) of 24 hours and a Recovery Time
Objective (“RTO") of 24 hours. RPO represents the maximum duration of time between the
most recent recoverable copy of your hosted Data and subsequent data center failure. RTO
represents the maximum duration of time following data center failure within which YOur access
to the Tyler Software must be restored. If we employ our disaster recovery plan, we will be
responsible for restoring your Data and ensuring that the Saa$ Services are online, and you will
be responsible for validating your Data and confirming the functioning of the Saa$ Services,
including any integrations.

7.4, Security Measures. We provide secure Data transmission paths between your devices and the

data center used to provide Saa$S Services to you. Data centers used to provide Saa$ Services
are accessible only by authorized personnel with a unique key entry or comparable security.
We conduct annual penetration testing of either the production network and/or web
application to be performed. We will maintain industry standard intrusion detection and
prevention systems to monitor malicious activity in the network and to log and block any such
activity. You may not attempt to bypass or subvert security restrictions in the SaaS Services or
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environments related to the Tyler Software. Unauthorized attempts to access files, passwords,
or other confidential information, and vulnerability and penetration test scanning of our
network and systems (hosted or otherwise) are prohibited. Where applicable with respect to
our applications that take or process card payment data, we comply with applicable
requirements of PCl DSS. We agree to supply the then-current status of our PCl DSS compliance
program in the form of an official Attestation of Compliance, which can be found at
hitps://www.tylertech.com/about-us/compliance and, in the event of any change in cur status,
we will comply with applicable notice requirements.

8. Access by Affiliated Organizations. We will grant each Affiliated Organization, if any, access to the
Tyler Software according to the terms of this Agreement, and each such Affifiated Organization must
abide by the terms of this Agreement.

SECTION C — PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

1. Professional Services. We will provide you the various implementation-related services itemized in
the Investment Summary,

2. Professional Services Fees. You agree to pay us the services fees in the amounts set forth in the
Investment Summary. Those amounts are payable in accordance with Exhibit B.

3. Additional Services. The investment Summary contains the scope of services and related costs
(including programming and/or interface estimates) required for the project based on our
understanding of the specifications you supplied. If additional work is required, or if you use or
request additional services, we will provide you with an addendum or change order, as applicable,
outlining the costs for the additional work. The price quotes in the addendum or change order will
be valid for thirty (30} days from the date of the quote.

4. Cancellation. If you cancel services less than four (4) weeks in advance {other than for Force
Majeure or breach by us}, you will be fiable for all (i) daily fees associated with cancelled
professional services if we are unable to reassign our personnel and (il) any non-refundable travel
expenses already incurred by us on your behalf. We will make all reasonable efforts to reassign
personnelin the event you cancel within four (4) weeks of scheduled commitments.

5. Services Warranty. We will perform services in a professional, workmanlike manner, consistent with
industry standards. In the event we provide services that do not conform to this warranty, we will
re-perform such services at no additional cost to you.

6. Site Access and Requirements. At no cost to us, you agree to provide us with reasonable access to
your personnel, facilities, and equipment as may be reasonably necessary for us to provide
implementation services, subject to any reasonable security protocols or other written policies
provided to us as of the Effective Date, and thereafter as mutually agreed to by you and us.

7. Background Checks. All of our employees undergo criminal background checks prior to hire. All
employees sign our confidentiality agreement and security policies.

qO
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8. Client Assistance. You acknowledge that the implementation of the Tyler Software is a cooperative
process requiring the time and resources of your personnel. You certify that you will use reasonable
efforts to cooperate with us and make your resources available for the performance of the
Agreement in accordance with its terms and the mutually agreed project schedule. Additionally,
you agree to use all reasonable efforts to cooperate with and assist us as may be reasonably
required to support the efficient execution of the activities required for this Agreement.
Accordingly, you will provide notice of any known inability to timely meet a project commitment so
that appropriate project adjustments can be made. We will not be liable for failure to meet any
project deadlines or milestones when such failure is due to Force Majeure or to the failure by you to
comply with the requirements of this paragraph,

9. Maintenance and Support Services.

9.1. For the duration of this Agreement, consistent with the terms set forth in our then-current
Support Call Process, we will:

9.1.1, perform our maintenance and support obligations in a professional and workmanlike
manner, consistent with industry standards, to provide support and resolve Defects in
the Tyler Software (subject to any applicable release life cycle policy);

9.1.2. provide telephone support during our established support hours as indicated in our
then-current Support Call Process;

9.1.3. maintain personnel that are sufficiently trained to be familiar with the Tyler Software
and Third-Party Software, if any, in order to provide maintenance and support services;

9.1.4. provide releases to the Tyler Software (including updates and enhancements) that we
make generally available without additional charge to customers with a current Saa$
Agreement.

9.2. Your use of Tyler Software or $aaSs Services requires that you remain current with supported
releases of Tyler Software as indicated in any applicable release lifecycle policy. Our warranty
and support commitments are contingent upon you using a supported version of the Tyler
Software. Tyler may require you to update to a current version of the Tyler Software to address
a critical issue (for example, to address an identified secu rity vulnerability in the Tyler Software
or a third-party component). Tyler will use commercially reasonable efforts to (i) minimize the
number of such instances and (i) provide as much advance notice as possible.

9.3. We will use all reasonable efforts to perform support services remotely. We reserve the right to
use secure third-party connectivity tools to deliver maintenance and support services. We also
reserve the right to collect Tyler Software or Saa$ Services telemetry for product evaluation,
quality assurance, and security monitoring and enhancement purposes. You agree to
reasonably cooperate with us in providing access to your environments and Data for the
purposes of providing maintenance and support services and acknowledge that our warranty,
support, and service level obligations under this Agreement are contingent upon receiving
reasonable access to your Data and systems.

9.4. For the avoidance of doubt, $SaaS Fees do not include the following services: (a) onsite support;
(b} application design; (c) other consulting services; or (d) telephone support outside our normal
business hours as listed in our then-current Support Cali Process.

SECTION D - THIRD-PARTY PRODUCTS
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1. Third-Party Hardware. We will sell and deliver any Third-Party Hardware set forth in the Investment
Summary for the price indicated therein. Unless otherwise indicated, installation of Third-Party
Hardware will be performed by Tyler or identified third party installers.

2. Third-Party Software. Your rights under this Agreement may include rights to certain Third-Party
Software. We certify that we have acquired the right to provide the Third-Party Software to you.
Your rights to the Third-Party Software will be governed by the Third-Party Terms and, in the
absence of such terms, this Agreement.

3. Third Party Products Warranties.
‘3.1 We are authorized by each Developer or its authorized reseller to sell or grant access, as
applicable, to the Third-Party Products.

3.2 Unless otherwise expressly indicated, Third-Party Hardware will be new and unused. You will
receive free and clear title to the Third-Party Hardware you purchase upon your payment in full
of the purchase price. '

3.3 You acknowledge that we are not the manufacturer of Third-Party Products. We do not warrant
or guarantee the performance of the Third-Party Products. However, we grant and pass
through to you any warranty that we may receive from the Developer or supplier of the Third-
Party Products.

4. Third-Party Services. If you have purchased Third-Party Services, those services will be provided
independently of Tyler by such third party at the rates set forth in the Investment Summary and in
accordance with Exhibit B.

SECTION E —TERM AND TERMINATION

1. Term. The initial term of this Agreement is three (3) years from the first day of the first month
following the Effective Date. Upon expiration of the initial term, this Agreement will renew
automatically for additional one (1) year renewal terms at our then-current Saas Fees unless
terminated in writing by either party at least sixty {60) days prior to the end of the then-current
renewal term. Your right to access or use the Tyler Software and the $Saa$ Services will terminate at
the end of this Agreement.

2. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated as set forth below. In the event of termination,
you will pay us for all undisputed fees and expenses related to the software, products, and/or
services you have received, or we have incurred or delivered, prior to the effective date of
termination. Disputed fees and expenses in all terminations other than your termination for cause
must have been submitted as invoice disputes in accordance with Section G{2).

2.1. Failure to Pay Fees. You acknowledge that continued access to the $aaS Services is contingent
upon your timely payment of fees. We may terminate this Agreement if you do not cure a
failure to pay within sixty (60) days of our notice to you that you have overdue payments.

2.2.For Cause. If you believe we have materially breached this Agreement, you will invoke the
Dispute Resolution clause set forth in Section G(2). You may terminate this Agreement for cause
after following the procedures set forth in Section G(2).

2.3.Force Majeure. Either party has the right to terminate this Agreement if a Force Majeure event
suspends performance of the SaaS Services for a period of forty-five (45) days or more.
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2.4. Lack of Appropriations. If you should not appropriate or otherwise make available funds
sufficient to utilize the SaaS Services, you may unilaterally terminate this Agreement upon thirty
(30) days written notice to us. You will not be entitled to a refund or offset of previously paid,
but unused SaaS Fees. You agree not to use termination for lack of appropriations as a
substitute for termination for convenience.

SECTION F — INDEMNIFICATION, LIMITATION OF LIABILITY AND INSURANCE

1. Intellectual Property Infringement Indemnification.

1.1. We will defend you against any third-party claim(s) that the Tyler Software or Documentation
infringes that third-party’s patent, copyright, or trademark, or misappropriates its trade secrets,
and will pay the amount of any resulting adverse final judgment (or settlement to which we
consent). You must notify us promptly in writing of the claim and give us sole control over its
defense or settlement. You agree to provide us with reasonable assistance, cooperation, and
information in defending the claim at our expense.

1.2. Qur obligations under this Section F(1) will not apply to the extent the claim or adverse final
judgment is based on your use of the Tyler Software in contradiction of this Agreement,
including with non-licensed third parties.

1.3.if an infringement or misappropriation claim is fully litigated and your use of the Tyler Software
is enjoined by a court of competent jurisdiction, in addition to paying any adverse final
judgment {or settlement to which we consent), we will, at our option, either:

1.3.1. procure the right to continue its use;

1.3.2. modify it to make it non-infringing; or

1.3.3. replace it with a functional equivalent.

We may elect to employ these remedies in advance of litigation if we receive information
concerning an infringement or misappropriation claim.

1.4. This section provides your exclusive remedy for third-party copyright, patent, or trademark
infringement and trade secret misappropriation claims.

2. General Indemnification.

2.1. We will indemnify and hold harmless you and your agents, officials, and employees from and
against any and all third-party claims, losses, liabilities, damages, costs, and expenses {including
reasonable attorney's fees and costs) for (i} personal injury, death, or damage to tangible
property, all to the extent caused by our negligence or willful misconduct; or (ii) our violation of
law applicable to our performance under this Agreement. You must notify us promptly in
writing of the claim and give us sole control over its defense or settlement. You agree to
provide us with reasonable assistance, cooperation, and information in defending the claim at
our expense,

2.2.To the extent permitted by applicable law, you will indemnify and hold harmless us and our
agents, officials, and employees from and against any and all third-party claims, losses,
liabilities, damages, costs, and expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees and costs) for {i)
personal injury, death, or damage to tangible property, all to the extent caused by your
negligence or willful misconduct; or (i) your violation of a law applicable to your performance
under this Agreement. We will notify you promptly in writing of the claim and will give you sole
control over its defense or settlement. We agree to provide you with reasonable assistance,
cooperation, and information in defending the claim at your expense.

gs
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3. DISCLAIMER. EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT AND TO
THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, WE HEREBY DISCLAIM ALL OTHER
WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, OR STATUTORY, INCLUDING, BUT
NOT LIMITED TO, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES, DUTIES, OR CONDITIONS OF MERCHANTABILITY OR
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. CLIENT UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES THAT TYLER
DISCLAIMS ANY LIABILITY FOR ERRORS THAT RELATE TO USER ERROR.

4. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY SET FORTH IN THIS
AGREEMENT, OUR LIABILITY FOR DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER BASED
ON A THEORY OF CONTRACT OR TORT, INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY, SHALL BE
LIMITED TO YOUR ACTUAL DIRECT DAMAGES, NOT TO EXCEED (i} DURING THE INITIAL TERM, AS
SET FORTH IN SECTION E(1), TOTAL FEES PAID AS OF THE TIME OF THE CLAIM; OR (i) DURING ANY
RENEWAL TERM, THE THEN-CURRENT ANNUAL SAAS FEES PAYABLE IN THAT RENEWAL TERM. THE
PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT THE PRICES SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT ARE SET
IN RELIANCE UPON THIS LIMITATION OF LIABILITY AND TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT ALLOWED
UNDER APPLICABLE LAW, THE EXCLUSION OF CERTAIN DAMAGES, AND EACH SHALL APPLY
REGARDLESS OF THE FAILURE OF AN ESSENT!AL PURPOSE OF ANY REMEDY. THE FOREGOING
LIMITATION OF LIABILITY SHALL NOT APPLY TO CLAIMS THAT ARE SUBJECT TO SECTIONS F(1) AND
F(2).

- 5. EXCLUSION OF CERTAIN DAMAGES. TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW,
IN NO EVENT SHALL WE BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE, INDIRECT, OR
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, EVEN IF WE HAVE BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY
OF SUCH DAMAGES.

6. lnsurance. During the course of performing services under this Agreement, we agree to maintain
the following levels of insurance: (i) Commercial General Liability of at least $1,000,000 per
occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate; (i) Automobile Liability of $1,000,000 combined single limit;
(iii) Professional Liability (inclusive of cyber protection) of $1,000,000 per claim and in the aggregate;
(iv) Workers Compensation complying with applicable statutory requirements; and (v}
Excess/Umbrella Liability of $5,000,000. We will add you as an additional insured to our Commercial
General Liability and Automobile Liability policies, which will automatically add you as an additional
insured to our Excess/Umbrella Liability policy as well. We will provide you with copies of
certificates of insurance upon your written request.

SECTION G — GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Additional Products and Services. You may purchase additional products and services at the rates
set forth in the Investment Summary for twelve (12) months from the Effective Date by executing a
mutually agreed addendum. If no rate is provided in the Investment Summary, or those twelve (12}
months have expired, you may purchase additional products and services at our then-current
pricing, also by executing a mutually agreed addendum. The terms of this Agreement will control
any such additional purchase(s), unless otherwise specifically provided in the addendum.

2. Performance Issues and Dispute Resolution.




2.1. Notice. You agree to provide us with written notice within thirty (30) days of receipt of an
invoice (for invoice disputes) or, in the case of performance, becoming aware of an issue related
to our performance under this Agreement.

2.2, Invoice Issues.

2.2.1.  [fthe issue relates to an invoice, your notice must-include the following: (i) the issue(s)
with the invoice; (i) the specific fee(s) at issue; and (iii) the corrective action(s) you are
requesting of Tyler.

2.2.2. We will provide a response to your notice that (i) supports the validity of the invoice as
issued by us; (i} adjusts the invoice; or {iii) describes our plan to address the issues
identified in your notice.

2.2.3. You agree to pay all undisputed fees by the due date. You acknowledge that you forfeit
your right to dispute any fees under this Agreement when you fail to pay undisputed
fees within sixty (60) days of our notice that the fees are overdue.

2.2.4. In addition to any other remedies available to us under this Agreement or law for non-
payment, we reserve the right to recover from you our reasonable costs of collection
associated with your failure to timely pay amounts due under this Agreement.

2.2.5. WE RESERVE THE RIGHT TG SUSPEND PERFORMANCE OF ANY SERVICE, INCLUDING
ACCESS TO SAAS SERVICES, FOR FAILURE TO TIMELY PAY UNDISPUTED EEES FIFTEEN (15}
DAYS FOLLOWING OUR NOTICE OF INTENT TO DO $SO.

2.3. Dispute Resolution. You agree to cooperate with us in trying to reasonably resolve all disputes,
including, if requested by either party, appointing a senior representative to meet and engage in
good faith negotiations with our appointed senior representative. Senior representatives will
convene within thirty (30) days of the written dispute notice, unless otherwise agreed. All
meetings and discussions between senior representatives will be deemed confidential
settlement discussions not subject to disclosure under Federal Rule of Evidence 408 or any
similar applicable state rule. If we fail to resolve the dispute, then the parties shall participate in
mediation in an effort to resolve the dispute. If the dispute remains unresolved after mediation,
then either of us may assert our respective rights and remedies in a court of competent
jurisdiction. Nothing in this section shall prevent you or us from seeking necessary injunctive
relief during the dispute resolution procedures.

3. Taxes. The fees in the Investment Summary do not include any taxes, including, without limitation,
sales, use, or excise tax. if you are a tax-exempt entity, you agree to provide us with a tax-exempt
certificate. Otherwise, we will pay all applicable taxes to the proper authorities, and you will
reimburse us for such taxes. If you have a valid direct-pay permit, you agree to provide us with a
copy. For clarity, we are responsible for paying our income taxes, both federat and state, as
applicable, arising from our performance of this Agreement.

4. Nondiscrimination. We will not discriminate against any employee or applicant in our employment
practices or the performance of our duties, responsibilities, and obligations under this Agreement
because of race, color, religion, gender, age, disability, religious beliefs, national, or ethnic origin.
We will post, where appropriate, all notices related to nondiscrimination as may be required by
applicable law.

5. E-Verify. We use the U.S. Depariment of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to confirm the
eligibility of all current employees and persons hired during the contract term to perform services
within the United States under this Agreement.

10



10.

11.

12.

13,

14.

Subcontractors. We will not subcontract any Professional Services specifically for this Agreement
without your prior written consent, not to be unreasonably withheld.

Binding Effect; No Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding on, and shall be for the benefit of,
either your or our successor(s) or permitted assign(s). Neither party may assign this Agreement
without the prior written consent of the other party; provided, however, your consent is not
required for an assignment by us as a result of a corporate reorganization, merger, acquisition, or
purchase of substantially all of our assets.

Force Majeure. Except for your payment obligations, neither party will be liable for delays in
performing its obligations under this Agreement to the extent that the delay is caused by Force
Majeure; provided, however, that within ten (10) business days of the Force Majeure event, the
party whose performance is delayed provides the other party with written notice explaining the
cause and extent thereof, as well as a request for a reasonable time extension equai to the
estimated duration of the Force Majeure event.

No Intended Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is entered into solely for the benefit of you
and us. No third party will be deemed a beneficiary of this Agreement, and no third party will have
the right to make any claim or assert any right under this Agreement. This provision does not affect
the rights of third parties under any Third-Party Terms.

Entire Agreement: Amendment. This Agreement represents the entire agreement between you and
us with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes any prior agreements, understandings,
and representations, whether written, oral, expressed, or implied. Purchase orders submitted by
you, if any, are for your internal administrative purposes only, and the terms and conditions
contained in those purchase orders will have no force or effect. This Agreement may only be
modified in writing, signed by an authorized representative of the party against whom enforcement
is sought.

Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, the
remainder of this Agreement will be considered valid and enforceable to the fullest extent
permitted by law.

No Waiver. In the event that the terms and conditions of this Agreement are not strictly enforced
by either party, such non-enforcement will not act as or be deemed to act as a waiver or
modification of this Agreement, nor will such non-enforcement prevent such party from enforcing
each and every term of this Agreement thereafter.

Independent Contractor. We are an independent contractor for all purposes under this Agreement.

Notices. All notices or communications required or permitted as a part of this Agreement, such as
notice of an alleged material breach for a termination for cause or a dispute that must be submitted
to dispute resolution, must be in writing and will be deemed delivered upon the earlier of the
following: (i) actual receipt by the receiving party; or (ii) five (5} days following deposit with
registered or certified mail with proper postage affixed and addressed to the other party at the
address set forth in this Agreement or such other address as the party may have designated by

= tyler
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15.

16.

17.

18.

1.

20.

21

proper notice. The consequences for the failure to receive a notice due to improper notification by
the intended receiving party of a change in address will be borne by the intended receiving party.

Client Lists. You agree that we may identify you by name in client lists, marketing presentations, and
promotional materials.

Confidentiality. Both parties recognize that their respective employees and agents, in the course of
performance of this Agreement, may be exposed to confidential information and that disclosure of
such information could violate rights to private individuals and entities, including the parties.
Confidential information is nonpublic information that a reasonable person would believe to be
confidential and includes, without limitation, personal identifying information {e.g., social security
numbers) and trade secrets, each as defined by applicable state law. Each party agrees that it will
not disclose any confidential information of the other party and further agrees to take all reasonable
and appropriate action to prevent such disclosure by its employees or agents. The confidentiality
covenants contained herein will survive the termination or cancellation of this Agreement. This
obligation of confidentiality will not apply to information that:
i.  isinthe public domain, either at the time of disclosure or afterwards, except by breach of
this Agreement by a party or its employees or agents;
il.  aparty can establish by reasonable proof was in that party's possession at the time of initial
disclosure;
ii.  aparty receives from a third party who has a right to disclose it to the receiving party; or
iv.  is the subject of a legitimate disclosure request under the open recards laws or similar
applicable public disclosure laws governing this Agreement; provided, however, that in the
event you receive an open records or other similar applicable request, you will give us
prompt notice and otherwise perform the functions required by applicable law.

Business License. In the event a local business license is required for us to perform services
hereunder, you will promptly notify us and provide us with the necessary paperwork and/or contact
information so that we may timely obtain such license. '

Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of
your state or commonweaith of domicile, without regard to its rules on conflicts of law.

Multiple Originals and Authorized Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in multiple
originals, any of which will be independently treated as an original document. Any electronic, faxed,
scanned, photocopied, or similarly reproduced signature on this Agreement or any amendment
hereto will be deemed an original signature and will be fully enforceable as if an original signature.
Each party represents to the other that the sighatory set forth below is duly authorized to bind that
party o this Agreement.

Cooperative Procurement. To the maximum extent permitted by applicable faw, we agree that this
Agreement may be used as a cooperative procurement vehicle by eligible jurisdictions. In such
Cases, we reserve the right to negotiate and customize the terms and conditions set forth herein,
including but not limited to pricing, to the scope and circumstances of that cooperative
procurement.

Data & Insights Solution Terms. Your use of certain Tyler solutions includes Tyler’s Data & Insights
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data platform. Your rights, and the rights of any of your end users, to use Tyler’s Data & insights
data platform is subject to the Data & Insights SaaS Services Terms of Service, available at:
hitps:/ /www.tvzertech.com/terms/data—insights—saas-services—terms-of—service. By signing a Tyler

Agreement or Order Form, or accessing, installing, or using any of the Tyler solutions listed at the

linked terms, you certify that you have reviewed, understand, and agree to said terms.

22. Contract Documents. This Agreement includes the following exhibits:

Exhibit A fnvestment Summary

Exhibit B Invoicing and Payment Terms
Exhibit C Service Level Agreement
Exhibit D Third-Party Terms

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, a duly authorized representative of each party has executed this Agreement as

of the date(s) set forth below.

Tyler Technologies, Inc.

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

Address for Notices:

Tyler Technologies, inc.

7701 College Boulevard
Overland Park, KS 66210
Attention: Chief Legal Officer

With a copy to: -

Tyler Technologies, Inc.
5101 Tennyson Parkway
Plano, TX 75024

Attention: Legal Department

City of Laurel, MS

By: W

Name:U Johany Magee

Title: Mayor

Date: 1/28/2026

Address for Notices:
City of Laurel

401 N. 5% Ave,

Laurel, MS 39440-0647
Attention: Jeff Williams
iwilliams@{aurelms.com
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Exhibit A
Investment Summary

The Investment Summary details the products and services to be delivered by us, or a third party, as
applicable, to you under the Agreement. This investment Summary is effective as of the Effective Date
regardless of any expiration date in the Investment Summary. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined
will have the meaning assigned to such terms in the Agreement.

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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Exhibit B
Invoicing and Payment Terms

We will provide you with the software and services set forth in the Investment Summary of the
Agreement. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined will have the meaning assigned to such terms in
the Agreement.

Invoicing: We will invoice you for the applicable software and services in the Investment Summary as
set forth below. Your rights to dispute any invoice are set forth in the Agreement.

1. Tyler Annua} Services.

L.1. SuaS$ Services. SaaS Fees are invoiced on an annual basis, beginning on the commencement of

1.2

the initial term as set forth in Section E(1) of this Agreement. Your annual Saas fees for the
initial term are set forth in the Investment Sum mary. Upon expiration of the initial term, your
annual Saa$ fees will be at our then-current rates. Beginning on the commencement of the
initial term, Client shall no longer be required to pay annual maintenance and support fees
under the Original Agreement.

Other Annual Services. Fees for annual services other than Saa$ Services are invoiced on an
annual basis, beginning with the availability of the service. Your annual fees for the initial term
are set forth in the Investment Summary. Upon expiration of the initial term, your annual fees
will be at our then-current rates,

2. Credit for Maintenance and Support Fees. Client will receive a credit for any prepaid but unused

maintenance and support fees payable under the Original Agreement as of the commencement of
the initial term as set forth in Section E(1) of this Agreement.

3. Tyler Services.

3.1

Professional Services Generally: Unless otherwise indicated helow, fees for Tyler services are
invoiced upon completion

4. Hardware & Third-Party Products.

4.1

4.2,

4.3.

4.4,

4.5,

Hardware: Hardware costs, if any, are invoiced upon delivery.

Hardware Maintenance: The first year maintenance fee for hardware is invoiced upon delivery
of the hardware. Subsequent annual maintenance fees for hardware are invoiced annually, in
advance, at then-current rates, upon each anniversary thereof.

Third-Party Services: Fees for Third-Party Services, if any, are invoiced as delivered, along with
applicable expenses, at the rates set forth in the Investment Summary.

Third Party Software. License Fees for Third Party Software, in any, are invoiced when the
applicable Third Party Software is made available to you for download.

Third Party Software Maintenance: The first year maintenance fee for the Third Party Software
is invoiced when it is made available to you for downloading. Subsequent annual maintenance
fees for Third Party Software are invoiced annually, in advance, at then-current rates, upon
each anniversary thereof.

Pl
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4.6. Third-Party Saas Services, Third-Party SaaS Services fees, if any, are invoiced on an annual basis,
commencing with availability of the respective Third-Party Saa$ Services. Pricing for the first
year of Third-Party SaaS Services is indicated in the Investment Summary. Unless express stated
otherwise, pricing for subsequent years will be at then-current rates.

5. Expenses. The service rates in the Investment Summary do not include travel expenses. Expenses
for Tyler delivered services will be billed as incurred and only in accordance with our then-current
Business Travel Policy.

Payment. Payment for undisputed invoices is due within forty-five {45) days of the invoice date. We
prefer to receive payments electronically. Qur electronic payment information is available by contacting
AR@tvlertech.com.
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Exhibit C

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT

l. Agreement Overview

This SLA operates in conjunction with, and does not supersede or replace any part of, the Agreement. It
outlines the information technology service levels related to the availability of the Tyler SaaS Services that
you have requested us to provide. All other support services are documented in the Support Call Pracess.
This SLA does not apply to any Third-Party SaaS Services.

1R Definitions. Except as defined below, all defined terms have the meaning set forth in the
Agreement.

Actual Attainment: The percentage of time the Tyler Software is available during a calendar month,
calculated as follows: (Service Availability ~ Downtime) + Service Availability.

Client Error incident: Any service unavailability resulting from your applications, content or equipment, or
the acts or omissions of any of your service users or third-party providers over whom we exercise no
control. '

Downtime: Those minutes during Service Availability, as defined below, when all users cannot launch,
login, search or save primary data in the Tyler Software. Downtime does not include those instances in
which only a Defect is present.

Emergency Maintenance Window: (1) maintenance that is required to patch a critical security
vulnerability; {2} maintenance that is required to prevent an imminent outage of Service Availahility; or
(3} maintenance that is mutually agreed upon in writing by Tyler and the Client.

Planned Downtime: Downtime that occurs during a Standard or Emergency Maintenance window.

Service Availability: The total number of minutes in a calendar month that the Tyler Software is capable
of receiving, processing, and responding to requests, excluding Planned Downtime, Client Error Incidents,
denial of service attacks and Force Majeure. Service Availability only applies to Tyler Software being used
in the production environment.

Standard Maintenance: Routine maintenance to the Tyler Software and infrastructure. Standard
Maintenance is limited to five (5} hours per week.

i, Service Availability

a. Your Responsibilities

Whenever you experience Downtime, you must make a support call according to the procedures outlined
in the Support Call Process. You will receive a support case number.

b. QOur Responsibilities

When our support team receives a call from you that Downtime has occurred or is occurring, we will work
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with you to identify the cause of the Downtime {including whether it may be the result of Planned
Downtime, a Client Error Incident, denial of service attack or Force Majeure). We will also work with you
to resume normal operations.

C. Client Relief

Our targeted Attainment Goal is 100%. You may be entitled to credits as indicated in the Client Relief
Schedule found below.  Your relief credit is calculated as a percentage of the SaaS Fees paid for the
calendar quarier.

In order to receive refief credits, you must submit a request through one of the channels listed in our
Support Cali Process within fifteen (15) days of the end of the applicable quarter. We will respond to your
relief request within thirty (30) days of receipt.

The total credits confirmed by us will be applied to the SaaS Fee for the next billing cycle. Issuing of such
credit does not relieve us of our obligations under the Agreement to correct the problem which created
the service interruption.

9.99% - 95.50% 5 medll ctlon will be taken
99.45% - 98.50% 2%
98.49% - 97.50% 4%
97.49% - 96.50% 6%
96.49% - 95.50% 8%
Below 95.50% 10%
v, Maintenance Notifications

We perform Standard Maintenance during limited windows that are historically known to be reliably
low-traffic times. If and when maintenance is predicted to occur during periods of higher traffic, we will
provide advance notice of those windows and will coordinate 1o the greatest extent possible with you.

Not ali maintenance activities will cause application unavailability. However, if Tyler anticipates that
activities during a Standard or Emergency Maintenance window may make the Tyler Software
unavailable, we will provide advance notice, as reasonably practicable, that the Tyler Software will be
unavailable during the maintenance windaw.
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Exhibit D
Third-Party Terms

Fire Prevention Mobile Terms. If applicable, your use of Tyler's Fire Prevention Mobile solutions is
subject to the terms found here: hittps://www.iyleriech.com/terms/fire-prevention-mobile-third-party-
terms. By signing a Tyler Agreement or Order Form, or accessing, installing, or using the Fire Prevention
Mobile solution, you agree that you have read, understood, and agree to such terms,

Twilio Acceptable Use Policy. Your use of the Tyler solutions listed below includes functionality provided
by a Third-Party Developer, Twilio. Your rights, and the rights of any of your end users, to use said
functionality are subject to the terms of the Twilio Acceptable Use Policy, available
at http://www.twilio.com/legai/aup. By signing a Tyler Agreement or Order Form, or accessing,
installing, or using any such Tyler solution, you certify that you have reviewed, understand, and agree to
said terms. Tyler hereby disclaims any and all liability related to your or your end user’s failure to abide
by the terms of the Twilio Acceptable Use Policy. Any liability for failure to abide by said terms shall rest
solely with the person or entity whose conduct violated said terms.

e Electronic Warrants

¢  Online Dispute Resolution
Enterprise Justice Notifications Add On (text notifications)
Absence & Substitute
Notify
Enterprise Jury Manager
Enterprise Supervision
Virtual Court
Mobile/Mobility Suite
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